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INDEPENDENT AUI>ITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors 
Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Salt Lake City, UT 

Financial Statements 

\' shaw&co. 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Center. for Excellence in Higher. Education,. 
Inc. (a nonprofit organization),. which comprise the. consolidated statement ot: financial position as ot: December 31, 
2012, and the related consolidated statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and. the related 
notes to the. consolidated financial statements .. 

1l1anagement's Re.'ipo11s;bi/ity for the Fi11a11cial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America: this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicahle lo financial audits contained in (;m•emment 1\uditin1: Standards, issued hy the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit lo obtain rcasonahle 
assurance about whether the financial statements arc free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obwin audit evidence about the amoums and disclosures in the financial 
sratemcms. The procedures selected depend on the auditor"s judgment, including the assessmcm of the risks or 
material misstatement or the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the. entity's. preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are. approp1iate in the circumstances. but nor. for. the purpose ot: 
expressing an opinion. on. the. effectiveness. of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express. no. such opinion .. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the. reasonableness. ot: 
significant. accounting estimates made by management,. as. well as evaluating the. overall presentation of the financial 
statements .. 

We believe that the audit evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects. the 
financial position of Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. as of December 31, 2012, and the changes in its 
net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. 

1564 South 500 West, Ste. 201 
Bountiful, UT 84010-7400 
Phone (801)294-3155 
Fax: (801) 294-3190 
www.sh<Jw-q;::io.com 
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Other Rep(Jrti11g Required by Gflvernment Auditing Sta11dards 

In accordance with Govemment 11uditing Standards, we have also issued our rep011ed dated June 7, 2013 on our 
consideration of Cemer for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc.'s imernal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matcers. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal. control over financial repo11ing 
and compliance and the results of that testing. and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral pm1 of an audit performed in accordance with Govnnment 
Audi1i11g S1andards. and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 

Other Matler.'i 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements taken as a 
whole. The accompanying Note 13 of the Organization's calculations of their Title IV 90110 revenue test is required 
by the U.S. Department of Education and the accompanying Note 6 on related party transactions is required by the 
U.S. Department of Education and accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The information 
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statemellls and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly lo the underlying accounting and other records used lo prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves and other additional procedures, in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United Stales of America. Jn our opinion. the information is fairly stated. in all 
material respects, in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Bountiful, Utah 
June 7, 2013 
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Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 

ASSETS 

Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash 

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 
December 31, 2012 

Sm<lcnt receivables. current, net of allowance 
for doubtful accounts of$6,066,795 

Promises to give, current portion 

Total current assets 

Hxed assets, al cost, less accumulated dcpn.:cialion of $9,435, 136 
Student receivables, noncurrcnt, net of allowance 

for doub1ful accounts of $20.558.457 
Promises lo give. net of current portion 
Goodwill 
Deposits 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

C1mcnl liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Granls payable. current portion 
Acrn1ed I iabi lities 
Excess sludenl funds 
Deferred luition 
Current portion of long-term debl 

Total current liabilities 

Granls payable. nel of curcnt portion 
Deferred rent 
Long-lenn debt, net of current portion 

Total liabililies 

:"Jct assets 
Unreslricle<l 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

Sec accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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s 6.281.927 
620,33 I 

35,991,175 
I 08.000 

43,001,433 

6,054,414 

43,084,934 
306,338 

419,042,664 
1,067,099 

$ 512.556.882 

s 5,991,615 
100,000 
966,970 

1,952,584 
37,982,485 
32,000,000 

78.993.654 

283,646 
2,971,040 

399,000,000 

481,248,340 

30,894,204 
414.338 

31,308,542 

s 512,556,882 



Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Consolidated Statement of Adivities 

For The Year Ended De('.ember 31, 2012 

Unrestricted 

REVE:\t.:ES A:\D OTHER SUPPORT 
Tuition and fees $ 183.668.476 
Contributions and gr:mts 10.448.458 
Other income 206,368 
Interest income 71.193 
Net assets released from restrictions 107,023 

Total revenues and other support 194,501,518 

EXPENSES 
Admissions and marketing 64,032.460 
Instruction al 36,344,017 
Administrative 20.415,777 
Occupancy 10,174,617 
Student expenses 8,997,746 
Depreciation 4,627,597 
Grants 841.953 
Interest 245,680 

Total expenses 145,679,847 

Change in net assets 48,821,671 

Net assets, beginning of year 41,883,453 

Former stockholder distributions prior to merger (59,810,920) 

Net assets, end of year $ 30,894,204 

Temporarily 
Restricted 

$ -

(107,023) 

()07,023) 

(107,023) 

521,361 

$ 414,338 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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Total 

$ 183,668.476 
10.448.458 

206,368 
71.193 

194,394,495 

64,032.460 
36,344,017 
20.415,777 
10,174,617 
8,997,746 
4,627,597 

841.953 
245,680 

145,679,847 

48,714,648 

42,404,814 

(59,810,920) 

$ 31,308,542 



Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

Year Ended December 31, 2012 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERA TI~G ACTIVITIES 
Change in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Bad debt expense 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Student receivables 
Promises to give 
Deposits 
Accounts payable 
Grants payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Excess student funds 
Deferred tuition 
Deterred rent 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM !~VESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of fixed assets 
Decrease in restricted cash 

Net cash used in investing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Distributions to stockholder, prior to merger 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cnsh equivnlents. beginning or year 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

SUPPLEMENT AL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

Cnsh paid for interest 

Cash paid for income taxes 

SUPPLEMENT AL SCHEDt:LE OF ~ONCASH ACTIVITIES 

$ 48,714,648 

4,627,597 
23,601, 168 

00,870,306) 
105,997 

(396,596) 
(l,492,944) 

383,646 
(4,265,066) 

(55,822) 
I0,448,971 

203,157 

51,004,450 

(6,325,963) 
1,680,295 

(4,645,668) 

(59,810.920) 

(59,810,920) 

( 13,452, 138) 

19,734,065 

$ 6,281,927 

$ 181,766 

"'=$===; 

As part of the merger transaction, the Organization issued two notes payable for S43 l ,000,000 as part of the purchase 
transactions and the recording of goodwill on the consolidated statement of financial position. 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated .Financial Statements 

December 31, 2012 

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS 

Center. for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. (the "Organization") is a non-profit corporation established 
in December 2006 to promote. excellence in higher. education by working with philanthropists and others 
interested in reforming American colleges and universities. Education reform, for these. purposes, is defined 
as increasing access, reducing costs, and improving the quality of higher education with the goal to make 
universities, schools, departments. and ultimately individual faculty members accountable for the quality 
and effectiveness of their work. 

Effective December 31, 2012. Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. executed merger agreements 
Lo merge Stevens-Henager College. Inc. ("SHC'). Colleget\merica Denver, Inc. ("CAD"), CollegeAme1ica 
Arizona, Inc. (''Ct\/\"'), California College Snn Diego, Inc. ("CCSD"), Cnlifomia College, Inc. (''CCI"), and 
CollcgeAmericn Services. Inc. ("CASI"') into Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc., with Cemcr 
for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. as the surviving Organization. The Organization is engaged in the 
following business activities through its divisions: 

Stevens-Henager College operates a postsecondary college with campuses located in Utah and Idaho. 

CollegeAmerica Denver operates a postsecondary college with campuses located in Colorado and Wyoming. 

CollegeAmerica Arizona operates a postsecondary college with campuses located in Arizona and Idaho. 

California College San Diego operates a postsecondary college with campuses located in California. 

CollegeAmerica Services provides various services to the divisions. 

Stevens-Henager College, CollegeAmerica Denver. CollegeAmerica Arizona. and California College San 
Diego are accredited by the. Accrediting Commission of Career Schools and Colleges ("ACCSC''). 

2. SUMMARY OFSIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POl.ICIES 

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis. The 
Organization follows the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting 
Standards Codification (ASC) 958, Not~(or-Profit Entities. 

The significant accounting policies followed arc described below to enhance the usefulness of the financial 
statement Lo the reader. 

Date of Management's Review 

Subsequem events were evaluated through June 7, 2013. which is the date the financial statement was 
available to be issued. From their review, management has determined that there were no significant 
recognizable or unrecognizable subsequent events that were not properly disclosed. 

Basis of Accounting and Principles of Consolidation 

These consolidated financial statements arc prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United Stales of America. The consolidated financial statements include the 
accounts of Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc., Stevens-Henager College. CollcgcAmcrica 
Denver, CollcgcAme1ica Arizona. California College San Diego, California College, and 
CollegeAmerica Services. These di visions arc under common control and. therefore, arc presented on a 
consolidated basis. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated. 
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Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated !financial Statements (continued) 

December 31:, 2012 

Use of Estimates 

The process of preparing consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make. estimates. and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets. and liabilities. along with disclosure. of contingent 
assets. and liabilities. at the. date. of the consolidated financial statemems and reported amoums of revenue 
and expenses. during the. reporting period. Actual results. could differ from those estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

i:;or purposes of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash equivalents include money market 
accounts. 

Restricted Cash 

Short-term restricted cash p1imarily represents amounts held for students that were received from the CAL 
Grants and Direct Loan programs. Restricted cash excludes certain funds that may be required to be 
returned if a student who receives Title IV program funds withdraws. These components. are. a part of 
cash, as. they are not legally restricted or otherwise segregated from other assets. Restricted cash is 
excluded from cash and cash equivalents. in the consolidated statement of financial position and is held in 
bank deposit accounts. 

Sludent Receivables 

Sludcnl rcccivahlcs consist of amounts due for tuition from currently enrolled and former students. Student 
receivables arc slated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances. Student 
rcccivahlcs with maturities greater than one year arc presented al their ncl present value and discounted at 
rates commensurate wilh the underlying student's bonowing rnle. 

Fixed Assets 

Fixed assets are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs 
are charged to. expense as. incurred, whereas. renewals and betterments that extend the lives. of fixed assets 
are capitalized. Depreciation of fixed assets other than leasehold improvements is computed using either 
straight-line or accelerated methods with lives. ranging from eighteen months to five years. Depreciation of 
leasehold improvements is computed using the straight-line method over the shorter of the life of the. asset 
or the life of the lease. 

Goodwill 

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price paid over the fair value of the net assets acquired in 
connection with a husincss combination. The Organization reviews goodwill for possihlc impainncnt on an 
annual hasis or when triggc1ing events occur in accordance with FASB ASC '.\50 lntan~ibles - Goodwill 
and Other. Goodwill is tested for impairment al the reporting unit level. The Organization utilizes a Lwo­
parl impairment test. First, the fair value of the rcprn1ing unit is compared Lo the canying value (including 
goodwill). If the canying value is greater than the fair value, the second step is performed. In the second 
step, the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill is compared to the carrying amounl of goodwill. 
If lhe C<lffying value is greater, a loss is recognized. The goodwill impairment test considers the impact of 
cun-ent conditions and the economic outlook for the Organization's industry, lhe general overall economic 
oullook including market data, governmental and environmental factors. in establishing assumptions used 
lo compute the fair value of the reporling unit. The Organizalion also takes into account lhe histoiical, 
cuffent and future operating results and any ocher facts and data pe11inent to valuing the reporting unit. 

7 



Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated !financial Statements (continued) 

December 31:, 2012 

Revenue Rccmmilion 

The Organizalion's revenue consists of luition revenue and contributions (sec below). Tuition revenue 
is recognized 011 a slrnighl-linc basis over the applicable period of instruction net. of cxpeclcd refunds. 
The Organization's sludents generally enroll in a program that encompasses a series of modules which arc 
taken consecutively over the length of lhe program. 

If a student's attendance precedes the receipt of tuition payments, the Organization establishes a sludent 
receivable for tuition charges in lhe amount reasonably assured of collection. Tuition paymenls received 
reduce the balance of accounts receivable due from the student. 

If a student withdraws from a program prior to a specified refund date, a portion of such student's tuition is 
refunded. The Organization records a provision for expected refunds and reduces revenue for the amount 
that is expected to be subsequently refunded. 

Bad debt expense is offset against gross tuition and fees revenue. 

Advertising Costs 

Advertising costs are charged to operations when incurred. Advertising expense for the year ended 
December 31, 2012 was approximately $39,553,000. 

Concentrations of Credit Risks 

The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which at limes, may exceed federally insured 
limits. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes il is not exposed to 
any significant credit risk on cash. 

Contributions 

Unconditional promises to give are recognized as contributions when received at the net present value of 
the amoums expected to be collected. Contributions are considered available for unrestricted use unless 
specifically restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted for future periods or by the donor 
for specific purposes are reported as temporarily restricted or permanemly restricted support that increases 
those net asset classes. 

When a donor-imposed time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted 
net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statements of activities and changes 
in net assets as net assets released from restriction. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are 
met in the same year the contribution is received are reported as unrestricted. 

Promises to give 

Promises. to give arc recorded at their eslimalcd fair value ... Amounts due later lhan one year. if any,. arc 
recorded al the present value of estimated future cash flows .. The Organizalion estimates the allowance 
based on analysis of specific donors, taking into consideration the age of past due pledges and an 
assessment of the donor's ability to pay. At December 31, 2012, management of the Organization 
considers all promises to be collectible: therefore, no allowance has been recorded. 

Income taxes 

The Organization is exempt from federal income taxes under section SOl(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue 
Code and therefore has made no provision for federal income caxes in the accompanying financial 
statement. In addition. the Organization has been determined by the lmernal Revenue Service not to be a 
"private foundation" within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
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Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated !financial Statements (continued) 

December 31:, 2012 

The OrganizaLion's Forms 990, Return o( Or1:t111i~a1ion Exempt from Income Tax, for the years ending 
December 31, 2012, 2011. 2010, and 2009 arc subject to examinaLion by the IRS. generally for Lhrcc years 
after Lhcy were filed. Generally accepted accounting principles require tax cffecLs from an uncertain tax 
position to be recognized in the financial sLaLemcnt only if the position is more likely than not to be 
sustained if Lhe position were Lo be challenged by a Laxing auLhority. The assessment of the Lax position is 
based solely on the technical merits or the posiLion, without regard Lo the likelihood thaL the tax posiLion 
may be challenged. If an uncc11ain tax position meets Lhe more-likely-than-not threshold. the largest 
amount or tax benefit Lhat is grcaLcr than 50% likely to be recognized upon ultimate settlement wiLh the 
Laxing auLhority is recorded. The Organization-.~ primary tax posiLions relate to its staLus as a noL-for-profit 
entity exempt from income taxes and classification of activities related to its exempt purpose. Management 
has evaluated the tax positions reflected in the Organization's tax filings and does not believe that any 
material unce11ain tax positions exist. 

Prior to the merger, SHC, CAD, CAA, CCSD. CASI, and CCI filed their tax returns as subchaprer "S" 
Corporations. Under those provisions, the companies generally do not pay income taxes on their taxable 
income. Instead, the stockholder is liable for individual income taxes on the Companies' taxable income. 
Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included in the consolidated financial statements. 

The Companies' Forms l 120S, U.S. lnrn11w Tax Rewm .fc1r an S Corporation, for the years ending 
December 31, 2012, 2011, 20IO, and 2009 are subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three years 
after they were filed. Generally accepted accounting principles require tax effects from an uncertain tax 
position to be. recognized in the financial statement only if the position is more likely than not to be 
sustained if the position were to be challenged by a taxing authority. The assessment of the tax position is 
based solely on the technical merits of the position, without regard to the likelihood that the tax position 
may be challenged. If an uncertain tax position meets the more-likely-than-not threshold, the largest 
amount of tax benefit that is. greater than 5Qfif likely to. be. recognized upon ultimate settlement with the 
taxing authority is recorded. Management has. evaluated the. tax positions reflected in the. Companies' tax 
filings and docs not believe Lhat any material uncertain Lax positions exist. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

The OrganizaLion has a number of financial insLruments, none of which arc held for trading purposes. The 
Organization estimates that the fair value of all financial instruments at December 31. 2012 does not differ 
materially from the aggregate carrying values of its financial instruments recorded in the accompanying 
consolidated statement of financial position. 

3. PROMISES TO GIVE 

Promises ro give as of December 31, 2012 consist of the following: 

Amounts due in:. 
Less than one year 
One to five years 

Less: di sc:ounl to ncL present value ( 1.89%) 

$ 108.000 
324.000 
432,000 
( 17,662) 

$ 414.338 

Management reviews contributions and pledges receivable quarterly and writes-off the amounL of 
individual pledges, if any, it deLermincs to be uncollcctiblc. t\ discounL rate commensurate with the 
risks involved in holding pledges receivable due in fuLurc years was used in calculaLing the present 
value of future cash flows. There was no allowance for doubtful pledges as of December 31, 2012. 
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Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated !financial Statements (continued) 

December 31:, 2012 

4. FIXED ASSETS 

Fi xcd assels. as. of December 31, 2012 eons isl of Lhe fol lowing: 

Furnilure and equipment 
Software 
SLudent computers 
Leasehold improvements 

Less: accumulated depreciation 

s 7,942,944 
716,605 

4,672,761 
2.157.240 

15,489,550 
(9,435.136) 

$ 6,054,414 

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2012 was $4,627,597. 

5. GRANTS PAYABLE 

Grants payable as of December 31, 2012 consist of the following: 

Amounts payable in less than one year 
Amounts payable in one to five years 

Less:. discounl Lo nel present value ( 1.89%) 

s 100.000 
300.000 
400,000 
(16,354) 

$ 38'.\.646 

The grants payable is closely tied Lo the promise Lo give (sec Note 3) .. Management reviews. grants 
payable quarlerly and wriLes-olT the amount of granls payable, i( any, iL determines to be not payable 
in Lhe fulure. A discount rate commensurate wich che risks involved in Lhe payment of grants due in 
future years was used in calculating the present value of future cash flows. There was no allowance 
for grants payable as of December 31, 2012. 

6 .. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Organization derives a substantial po11ion of its revenue from Student Financial Aid (SFA) received by 
its students under the Title IV programs administered by the ll.S. Depm1ment of Education pursuant to the 
Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended (HEA). To continue to participate in the SFA programs, the 
Organization must comply with the regulations promulgated under the HEA Those regulations require that 
all related party transactions be disclosed, regardless of their materiality to the financial statements. 

The chairman of the board of directors owns and operates real estate leasing companies from which the 
Organization leases some campus facilities. The amounts paid for the year ended December 31, 2012 was 
approximately $4,644,000. The chairman of the board made a cash contribution of $10,075,000 to the 
Organization during the year ended December 31, 2012. The Organization also has two notes payable to a 
related party trust (see Note 8). 

In addition, the corporations (which were previously owned by the chairman of the board of directors) 
merged into Lhc Organization (sec Nole. I and Note. 11 ). The corporations contributed lo Lhe OrganizaLion 
some of their accounts receivable. The contribution was recorded net of the allowance. for doubtful 
accounts. The ncl amounl of the contribution was $46,185,367. Also, prior to Lhe merger,. the stockholder 
of the Companies (now chairman of the board) operated CollcgcAmcrica Services. Inc. (CASI), a related 
parly which provided various administrative services to. the Companies. During Lhe year ended December 
31, 2012. the Companies recorded expense of approximately $28. 910,000, for services performed and 
expenses paid by CJ\SL 

IO 



Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated !financial Statements (continued) 

December 31:, 2012 

7. ECONO~HC DEPENDENCY 

The Organization (SHC, CAD .. CAA, and CCSD) receives significant revenue from Title. IV sources. 
Continuing participation in Title IV programs requires compliance with numerous federal regulations. 
Future noncompliance wilh lhese regulations or a change in the laws governing these programs could 
severely impact the operations of the Organization. Further, ineligibility to participate in Title IV programs 
would have a material adverse effecl on lhe Organizalion's enrollment, revenue and resulls of opernlions. 

8. LONG-TERM DEBT 

In connection with the merger, the Organization entered into two notes payable with the seller, a related 
pm1y trust. The senior note matures December 31, 2017 and the junior note matures December 31, 2019. 
Both notes bear interest at I% and require quarterly interest payments. P1incipal payments on the senior 
note are required based on a formula which takes into account cash flow and revenue of the organization. 
No principal payments are due on the junior note until after the senior note is paid in full. The notes 
contain certain events which could result in an adjustment to the interest rate in the future and acceleration 
of principal payments. No triggering events have occurred as of December 31, 2012. 

The balance of the senior note at December 31, 2012 was $200,000,000. The balance of the junior note at 
December 31, 2012 was $231.000,000. The current portion of the notes payable has been calculated based 
upon management's expectation for payment of principal in 2013 in accordance with the formula. 
Projected future minimum principal payments are as follows: 

Year ended December 31. 
201J 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 

Thereafler 

9. COMMITMENTS AND CO:'llTINGENCIES 

Operating lease agreemems 

$ 32,000,000 
36,000,000 
40,000.000 
44,000.000 
48,000.000 

231.000.000 

$ 431,000,000 

The Organization leases its campus facilities under operating lease agreements. The operating lease 
agreements comain provisions which allow for rent increases on an annual basis, subject to limits. The 
Organization recognizes rent expense on a straight-line basis over the lease period. Rent expense for the 
year ended December 31, 2012 was approximately $I 0.174,000. ruture minimum lease payments are as 
follows: 

Year Ending December 31. 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 

Thereafter 

11 

Amount 
$ 8, 134.510. 

7,925.002. 
7,926.534. 
6,592,334 
5,788,700 

10.272.334 

$ 46.639 .414 



Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 

Lctlcrs of credit 

Notes to Consolidated !financial Statements (continued) 
December 31:, 2012 

The Organization has. four letters of credit outstanding at December 31. 2012 .. Three leltcrs of credil arc Lo 
the Division of Private Occupational Schools,. Colorado Departmcnl of Education on behalf of 
Collegci\merica Denver. One letter of credit is in lieu of a security deposit to a landlord. The amount 
outstanding under the letters of credit is $2,731,394 al December 31, 2012. The letters of credit arc 
guaranteed to the issuing bank by the chairman of the board of directors of the Organization. J\ll lcttcrs of 
credit will expire in 2013. 

Legal proceedings 

From time to time. the Organization may be involved in various legal proceedings that are incidental to its 
business. However, to management's knowledge. there currently are no material pending legal proceedings 
involving the Organization. 

10. REGULATORY 

The Organization is subject to extensive regulation by federal and state governmental agencies and 
accrediting bodies. In particular, the Higher Education Act and the regulations promulgated there under by 
the U.S. Department of Education subject the Organization to significant regulatory scrutiny on the basis of 
numerous standards that schools must satisfy in order to participate in the various federal student financial 
assistance programs under Title IV of the Higher Education Act. 

To. participate in Title JV programs,. an institution must be authorized lo offer its. programs of instruction 
by the. relevant agency of the slate in which it is physically located,. accredited by an accrediting agency 
recognized by the U.S .. Department of Education and certified as eligible by the. lJ.S. Department of 
Education .. The lJ .S .. Department of Education will ccrti f y an institution to. participate in Title JV programs 
only after the institution has. demonstrated compliance with the Higher Education Act and the. U.S. 
Department of Education's extensive rcgulntions regarding institutional eligibility. J\n institution must also 
demonstrate its compliance to the U.S. Department of Education on an ongoing basis. As of December 31, 
2012, management believes the Organization is in compliance with the applicable regulations in all material 
respects. 

The Higher Education Act requires accrediting agencies to review many aspects of an institution's 
operations in order to ensure that the education offered is of sufficiently high quality to achieve satisfactory 
omcomes and that the institution is complying with accrediting standards. Failure to demonstrate compliance 
with accrediting standards may result in the imposition of probacion, the requirements to provide periodic 
reports, the loss of accreditation or other penalties if deficiencies are not remediated. 

Student Default Rate 

i:;or each federal fiscal year, the U.S. Department of Education calculates a rate of student defaults for each 
educational institution which is known as a "cohort default rate." An institution may lose its eligibility to 
participate in some or all Title IV programs if. for each of the three most recent federal fiscal years for 
which information is available, 25% or more of its students who became. subject lo a repayment obligation 
in that federal fiscal year defaulted on such obligation by the end of the following federal fiscal year. In 
addition, an institution may lose its eligibility to participate in some or all Title IV programs if its cohort 
default rate exceeds 40% in the most recent federal fiscal year for which default rates have. been 
calculated by the U.S. Department of Education. The divisions' cohort default rates for the 20IO, 
2009 and 2008 federal fiscal years were the following: 
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Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated !financial Statements (continued) 

December 31:, 2012 

2010 2009 
Stevens Henager College 
CollcgeAmeriea Denver 
CollcgeAmeriea Arizona 
California College San Diego 

Financial Responsibilily 

18.4 
26.0 
19.9 
15.3 

15.0 
22.7 
24.5 
19.7 

2008 
10.6 
18.5 
18.6 
15.0 

The U.S. Deparlment of Educalion calculales. an institution's composile score for financial responsibilily 
based on its (i) equity ratio, which measures the institution's capital resources, ability to borrow and 
financial viability; (ii) primary reserve ratio, which measures the institution's ability to suppo11 cuITent 
operations from expendable resources: and (iii) net income ratio, which measures the institution's ability to 
operate at a profit. An institution that does not meet the U.S. Department of Education's minimum 
composite score may demonstrate its financial responsibility by posting a letter of credit in favor of the 
U.S. Department of Education and possibly accepting other conditions on its participation in the Title IV 
programs. The composite score, using the proprietary ratios, for the Organization for the year ended 
December 31, 2012 was 0.2. 

The composite score, using the non-profit ratios, for the Organization for the year ended December 31, 
2012 was 0.2. 

Because the Organization operates in a highly regulated industry, they, like other industry 
participants, may be subject from time to time to audits, investigations. claims of noncompliance or lawsuits by 
governmental agencies or third parties, which allege statutory violations, regulatory infractions or common 
law causes of action. While there can be no assurance lhat regulalory agencies or third parties will nol 
undertake investigalions or make claims against the Organization. or that such claims, if made, will not 
have a material adverse effecl on the Organization's lmsiness, resuhs of operations or financial condilion, 
managemenl believes it has mate1ially complied wilh all regulatory requirements. 

IL MERGER 

Effective December 31, 2012, Cemer for Excellence. in Higher Education, Inc .. executed merger agreemems 
lo merge Stevens-Henager College, Inc .. Collegei\me1ica Denver, Inc., CollegeAmericn Arizona, Inc., 
California College San Diego, Inc .. Califomia College, Inc., and Collegei\merica Services, Inc .. into Cenler 
for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc., with Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. as the 
surviving Organization. As part of the merger. all trade names, domain names, and other intellectual 
property formerly held by the divisions were acquired by the Organization. The acquisition was recorded 
at fair value and goodwill was recorded. Total consideration was $480,864.694 which includes liabilities 
assumed of $49.864,694. Through the transaction. the Organization recognized cash of ($3,725,228). 
restricted cash of $620.331, net accounts receivable of $32,890,742, deposits of S 1,067,099. property and 
equipment of $6.054,414. and goodwill of $419,042,664. 

12. LINE OF CREDIT 

At December 31, 2012, the Organization has a line of credit with a bank in the amount of S3,600.000 which 
expires on August 31, 2013. Any unpaid advance<> hear interest at an adjusted l.IBOR rate. As of 
Decemher 31. 2012, the I ine of credit contains a suhl imit for letters of credit of S3.600,000, of which four 
lcuers of credit were outstanding in the amount of $2,731,394. The line of credit is guaranteed by the 
chairman of the board of directors. 
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Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated !financial Statements (continued) 

December 31:, 2012 

13. ATTEST A TIO~ OF REVE~UE SOURCES 

Regulations restrict. the proportion of cash receipts for tuition and. fees from eligible programs to not 
more than 90 percent from Title IV programs. The failure of the Companies to meet the 90 percent 
limitation could result in the loss of the Companies· ability to participate in Title IV programs. For 
the year ended December 31, 2012, the Companies received the following (in thousands): 

Stevens- College College California 
Henager America America College 
College Denver Arizona San Diego 

Revenue from Title IV sources 104,008 23.249 13,325 17,660 
Total cash basis revenue 118.999 27,477 15,033 25,872 
Percentage of revenue from Title IV 87.40% 84.61% 88.64% 68.26% 
Percentage of revenue from Non-Title IV 12.6% 15.39% 11.36% 31.74% 
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Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Noles to Consolidated }"inam:ial Statements (continued) 

ne.-emher 31, 2012 

In accordance with 34 C.F.R. 668.23, further analysis of Title IV revenues and total cash basis revenue for 2012: 

(In •huus;mcl'' S1c\•c11s Hcu;igcr Collt.'.!;C Coll..:gc/\m..:rica (kuv..:r Cull..:gc/\n1..:rica /\riztma Califurni<t Coll..:gc San Di..:~o 

Amllunt Am•>Unl Amllunt Amount 
J)ishun . ..:ti :\tfju,h:ti /\n1mmt [)i,hursccl Acljustccl ;\mtHm• l>ishur,..:ti :\tiju,h:ti /\n1mmt [)i,hursccl Acljustccl ;\ mo•m• 

Ad,j11$ted $t11de11t Title JV rev.,1111e 
Suhsitfi.r...:ti loan s n.570 s 3:?.570 $ 7.359 $ 1.~w s 4.12:\ s 4.1:?.R $ 5.4:?.9 $ S.429 
Un,uhsiclizccl loan 40.144 40.144 H.752 R.7S:?. 4.H7o 4.R7o o.342 o.~4:?. 

Feeler.al pdl ~ran• ~0.740 30.740 o.9~4 o.934 4.:?.39 4.2~9 5.7:?.I S.721 
FSEOG (Suhjcct to malchin~ n:tim.:lion) 5S4 S54 204 :?.04 R:?. H2 IOR loH 
Feeler.al work stucly ;1ppli..:tf lo tuition ;mcl 

r..:cs ( Suhj..:c..:• 10 n i<tt<:hin,t:. n:cluction J 

Stuclcnt Titl..: ]\/ n:vcnu..: 104.0llR :?.3.:?.49 1~.3:?.S 17.MO 

Re•enue. ad,jll$llnent 
If th" amounl of l"'omcl' :\ppli.:cl r;,_1 
plu, Stuclcnt TitlL: JV RL:vcmJL: is num: 1hau 
111i1ion ;1mf l'L:cs, thL:n n:thu:i.: Titli.: JV r..: ... ·cm1..: 

hy thL: amounl over 111ilirn1 amf l'L:cs 

:\tfju,1..:d Stuclcut Titli.: JV ri.:vcuui.: s 104.00X $ :?.3.:?.49 s 1~.3:?.S $ 17.Mll 

Student No11 Title. IV re•e1111e 
Grnnl furul' for th..: '11ufi.:111 fro111 uoufcck·rnl 

puhlic.: agoc1H.:ics or private sour<.:..:' inclcpcmf..:111 
,>f thL: i11,1it11litn1 s II s II $ CS! $ !51 s 105 s HIS $ 7n $ 7o 

F umfs pro ... ·iclccl for 1hc stuclcut umfi.:r a L'OutraL'11ml 

arr;mg'-'lll'-'Ut w·ith a FL:tfL:raL Sl<tk, or I .ocal 

!!ovcrnn IL:lll agocm:y for th..: pu11'0'..: 

of pro ... ·iclin~joh tr;1i11in~ lo lo"' income irulividual' 3.5n9 ~509 l.X5R 1.H5H ~Xo ,\H6 5.751 5.751 
F umfs usccl hy a '1mfi.:n1 fron 1 savin!!s pl;m, for 

i.:thKatiorml i.:xpi.:nscs cst;1hli,hccl hy or on hdmlf 

of th..: '1mfi.:n1 1ha1 c11mlif)· for spi.:c.:ial tax 1ri.:;11mcut 
urulcr 1hc lrui.:rrml R..: ... ·cm1..: Coclc 

Sdmol sdml;1rships tfi,hursccl to 1hc stuclcut 

1\n1mmt' of 111"11hsicfo·ccl I .tm11 ov'-·r 1hc 

pr.: EC:\Sl.:\ loan limics (IL)/ ( 19) (SJ !5) (:!.) (2> (n> !01 
Stucknt pay111L:11ls 7.111:?. 7.012 1.212 l.:?.I:?. l)S') 959 l.o:1R 1.03:\ 

Scuclt.·nc ~1m TiclL: JV rL:\•cnuL: s IO.S73 $ 3.ono s l.44R $ n.:\W 

RL:\•t.'JlllL: frum ud1t.·r suurt·L:s (Tulals fur d1c riscal }'t.'.ar) 

/\t:lh·ilics t:oml11c1ccl hy lhc si:fmol lhal arc 

ncccssar}' fur L:tlut-.;Hion ;mcl crainiu~ 
(34 cr.R. Sn6R.:?.R(:i)(3)(iiJ s s $ $ s s $ $ 

Funds p.aicl hy a slmlL:nl. or 1m hd1all' of a scuclcnc 

h}' a parly oct1L:r chan .a schoul. fur .an L:tlui.:.acion 

or crainiu~ iu a tlualiriccl program chac is uoc cli~ihlc 
(34 cr.R. Sn6R.:?.R(:i)(3)(iii) 

Th" :>!cl Prcs.:nc V :ilu" (:>!PY 1 of ,dmnl loan' 
clishursL:tl lo slmlL:uls U4C.l"'R SMH.2H(;t)!51(i> am! (hl 4.41:\ 4.4lR l.l 6R I.In:\ :?.no 260 U53 us:• 

Revenue frum u1hcr suurt:L:s $ 4,.:1-lfi $ I.lo:\ $ 260 $ us:• 

IS 
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Center. for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
[Mail ur Cunsulitlaletl Slal.,nrenl uf Finandal Pusiliun 

Oecember ,~I. 2012 

Stevens California 

Hcnagcr' C<•llcgt.!Amcr'ica C<•llcgt.!Amcr'ica Cnllcgt.! San 

Colleg~ D~nv~r Arizona Dh:~go Ci\SI Ct::HJ:: J::liminallons Totals 

ASS.l:TS 
C111·1 ... ~nt a'.\se.!• s 

Cash and <'ash e(1uivalents s (I I l.6X'IJ s (5.2'11JJ s (!UJIJ7J s (J6.!\2JJ s CU63.41'1J s llJ.IJIJ7.155 s s 6.2!\l.'127 
Rt.!'.\tl'i~tt.!d C<l'.\h 49l.R46 4l.M7 47.R7R JR.%0 6:?.IUJI 
Student receival>les. cunent. net of allowance 

fol' <lnubllhl :O<'t:llunls '.!J.710.605 4.9%.60~ l.979.626 :'i.J04.'.\'.\6 '.\5.991.175 
Promise~ tu g1v~. cunent pu111on 1011.000 1011.000 

Tt)lal cm·rcnl as~r., 24.090.76:?. :'i.0'.\2.965 :?..019.497 :'i.'.\06.47'.\ (J56'.\.419) 10.115.155 4'.\.001.4'.\'.\ 

fixed assets. at cost 3.0411.'197 516.155 302.971 720.433 l.465.11511 6.054.414 
Stmlcnl rc'-·civahlcs. n01K111'J\~nt. net <•f allnv..oanct.! 

for doul>tiul accounts 2:1.l IX.X40 7.'IXl.0'13 1.60X.l:IO X.376.X)I 43.0l\4.'134 
Pl'omist.!'.\ to give.!. net of t:LU'J\~nt j)l)J'lion '.\06.'.\'.\~ '.\06.'.\'.\~ 

Goudw11l 431.000.000 (I l.'l:ILH6J 4 I '1.042.664 
Ot.!Jllhi1s 297.797 R0.119 R4.'.\0I l:?.7.690 477.192 1.067.099 

Total :\ss~ts s 5:?.556.396 s 13.610.332 s 4.014.'ll'I s 14531.447 s ( l.620.36'1) s 441.421.4'13 s ! I l.'l:ILH6J S 5 125 :16.XX2 

LlAIHLITll:S ANU Nl:T ASS.l:TS 
C111T~m 1 iahil iii~, 

1\<'<'ounts payal>le s 2.X37.3'1X s WX.164 s 336.W:I s 670.XO'I s 154X.64'1 s s s ).'1'11.61) 
Gr·anls 1~1yahk cur·r-cnl prn·tinn 100.000 100.000 
1\ccrued lml>1 l1tie' 674.6'1) X'l.247 62.27:1 64.761 7:1.'1'12 '166.'170 
Ex.t.'Cs'.\ sl udt.!nt furn I., l.l'.\'.\.244 150.77'.\ 127.19~ 541.'.\69 1.9525~4 

lJeferre<l tmtion 25.087.760 ).277.6)) 2.66'1.'131 4.'147.LW 37.'IX2.4X:I 
Cur'r'Clll pot't inn nf lnng-1cr'm dcht '.\2.000.000 '.\2.000.000 

Total current liahililks 2'1.733.0'17 6.115.113'1 3.1'15.'l'l'I 6.:?.:?.4.0711 l.6:?.4.641 32.100.000 711.'1'13.654 

Gmm, payahlc. n~I of cur-en I port ion '.!RJ.646 2~'.\.646 
0..:-f..:-J'J'..:-d J'('ll[ 2.167.110 209.'.\90 '.\01.17~ 276.79~ 16564 2.971.040 
Lung-term del>t. net of cunent p(l111on 3'1'1.000.000 3'1'1.000.000 

T111 :ol 1 iahi lil ic., 31.900.207 6.'.\25.229 J.497.177 6500.~76 l.641.205 43 I .'.\~'.\.646 4~ 1.24~.'.\40 

N~t assets 
t.:nl'..:''.'\tJ'ic:t..:-d 20.656.1~9 7.2~5.10'.\ 517.742 ~.0'.\0571 ('.\.261574) 9.62'.\509 ( 11.957.'.\'.\6) '.\0.~94.204 

Tempornnly res11icted 414.:nx 414.:nx 

Tn•al net a'.'\s..:-•s 20.656.IR9 7.2~5.10'.\ 517.742 R.0'.\0571 (J.261574) 10.0'.\7.R47 (I l.957.'.\'.\6) J l.'.\0~542 

Total liabilities and n~l assels s 52.556.3"6 s I 3.610.33:?. s 4.014.'ll'I s 14531.447 s ( l.6:?.0.36'1 j s 44 l.4'.! I .4'13 s (I l.'157.336i S 5 I :?.5 56.lll\:?. 

See indep~ndenl auditor's report and accompanying not~s to ('Onsolidat~d financial stat~menl. 
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REVENUES 
Tuition and fees 
Contributions and grams 
Other income 
Interest income 

Total revenues 

EDUCATIONAL EXPENSES 
Admissions and marketing 
Instructional 
Administrative 
Occupancy 
Student expenses 
Depreciation 
Grams 
lnlerest 

Total expenses 

Change in net assets 

Nel assels. beginning uf year 

S1ockholder dislributions prior lo merger 

Net assets, end of year 

Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Detail uf Cum;ulidated Statement of Activities 

For The Year Ended Derember 31, 2012 

California 

Stevens CullegeAmerica CullegeAmerica College San 

Henager College Denver Arizona Diego CASI CEHE 

s I 12.538.438 s 29.190.732 s 16.427.264 s 25.512.042 s 28.909.790 s -

10.448.458 
109.052 39.785 13.174 44.357 

17.720 13,925 3,129 36,419 

112,665,210 29,244,442 16,443,567 25,592,818 28,909,790 10,448,458 

39.950.643 10.559.41 I 5.539.466 7.929.855 52.585 500 
21.306.024 7.140.725 2.404.143 5.473.136 19.989 
27.770.641 6.657.130 3.753.595 5.714.086 5.322.633 107.482 

5.796.248 1.696.101 1.144.395 1.517.294 20.579 
6.228.459 1.601.637 506.103 635.266 26.281 
3.239.094 602.306 318.380 335.236 132.581 

841.953 
15,952 5 229,723 

I 04.291.109 28,273,262 I 3,666,082 21,604,878 5,804,37 I 949,935 

8,374,101 971,180 2,777,485 3,987,940 23,105,419 9,498,523 

25,365,000 7,703,000 2,680,000 10,147,000 7,927,826 539,324 

(13,082,912) (1,389,077) (4,939,743) (6, I 04,369) (34,294,819) 

s 20,656, I 89 s 7,285,103 s 517,742 $ 8,030,57 I s (3,261,574) s 10,037,847 

See independent auditor\ report and accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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Eliminations Totals 

s (28. 909. 790) s 183.668,476 
10.448.458 

206.368 
71,193 

(28,909,790) 194,394,495 

64.032.460 
36.344.017 

(28. 909. 790) 20.415.777 
10.174.617 
8.997.746 
4.627.597 

841.953 
245,680 

(28, 909, 790) 145,679,847 

48,714,648 

(11,957,336) 42,404,814 

(59,810,920) 

s (I 1,957,336) s 3 I ,308,542 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT O~ INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAi. 
REPORTING A~D ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON 

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDA~CE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

The Board of Directors 
Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Salt Lake City. UT 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governme111 Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. the consolidated financial statements of Center for Excellence in Higher Education, 
Inc. (a. nonprofit organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31,. 
2012, and the related consolidated statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended. and the related 
notes to the consolidated financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 7, 2013 .. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered Center for Excellence 
in Higher Education, Jnc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that arc appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements. hut not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Center for Exccllcncc in Higher 
Education, lnc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Organization's internal control. 

/\ deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control docs not allow management or 
employees. in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, lo prevent, or detect and coll'cct. 
misstatements on a timely basis. A mmerial weakness is a deficiency. or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detecced and col1'ected on a timely basis. A sixn(ficallf deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet impo11ant enough to 
merit attention by chose charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for che limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be. material weaknesses. or significant 
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in. internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses .. However, material weaknesses may exist chat have nor been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Center for Excellence in Higher Educacion. lnc.'s 
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, conlracts, and grant agreemenls, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and macerial effect on the determination of financial stalement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly. we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or olher mallcrs thal arc required lo be 
reported under (;m·emment 1\uditi11~ Standards. 

1564 South 500 West, Ste. 201 
Bountiful, UT 84010-7400 
Phone (801) 294-3155 
Fax: (801) 294-3190 
www.shaw-cpa.com 
i nfo@s h aw-cp a. com 
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Purpose of this Report 

The purpose or this report is solely to describe the scope or our testing or imcrnal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not lO provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral pare of an audit performed in accordance with Govern111ent Auditing Standards 
in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any 
other purpose. 

Bountiful, Utah 
June 7. 2013 
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Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Schedule of findings and Disposition of Prior Year Findings 

Year. Ended. December 31, 2012 

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results 

Con.m/idated f"inancial Swremenfs 

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified 

Internal control over financial repmting: 
• Material weakness(es) identified? 
• Significant deficiency(ies) identified that arc 

not considered to be material weaknesses'! 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings 

Yes _j_No 

Yes _j_None reported 

__ Yes _j_No 

No findings related to the consolidated financial statements were noted which arc required lo be reported in 
accordance with G011ern111mt Auditing Standards for the. year ended December 31, 2012 .. 

Disposition of' Prior Year Findings 

No findings related to the combined financial statements were noted which are required to be reported in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards for the year ended December 31, 2011. 
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Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Stevens-Henager College 

EIN: 20-8091013, DUNS: 830967790, OPE ID: 00367400 
CollegeAmerica Denver 

EIN: 20-8091013, DUNS: 869303586, OPE ID: 02594300 
CollegeAmerica Arizona 

EIN: 20-8091013, DUNS 148984107, OPE ID: 03120300 
California College San Diego 

EIN: 20-8091013, DUNS: 626397678, OPE ID: 02110800 

Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 

Consolidated Financial Statements 
With Supplementary Information 

And Compliance Report 

And 

Independent Auditor's Report 

\' shaw&co. 
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INDEPENDENT AUI>ITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors 
Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Salt Lake City, UT 

Financial Statements 

\' shaw&co. 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Center for Excellence in Higher Education,. 
Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the. consolidated statements of financial position as of December 31, 
2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statements of activities and cash flows for the. years then ended. and the. 
related notes to the. consolidated financial statements. 

1l1anagement's Respo11s;bi/ity for the Fi11a11cial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial stateme11ts in 
accordance with accou11ting principles generally accepted in the United States of America: this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated 
financial stateme11ts that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applieahlc to financial audits contained in (;m•emment 1\uditin1: Standards, issued hy the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit Lo obtain reasonahle 
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements arc free or material misstmcmenl. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statcmems. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessmem of the risks of 
material misstatement or the consolidated financial statements. whether due to fraud or en-or. In making those 1isk 
assessments, che auditor considers internal control relevant. to the. entity's. preparation and fair presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures chat are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on. the effectiveness of che entity's internal concrol. Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the. appropriateness of accounting policies used and the. 
reasonableness. of significant accounting. estimates made by management, as. well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above prese11t fairly, in all material respects. the 
financial position of Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the 
changes in its nee assets and its cash flows for !he years then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepced in che United States of America. 

1564 South 500 West, Ste. 201 
Bountiful, UT 84010-7400 
Phone:. (801).294-3155 
Fax: (801) 294-3190 
www.shaw-cpa.com 
info@shaw-cpa.com 



Other Rep(Jrti11g Required by Gflvernment Auditing StandardJ 

In accordance with Govemment 11uditing Standards, we have also issued our rep011ed dated June 6, 2014 on our 
consideration of Cemer for Excellence in Higher Education. Inc.'s imernal control over financial reponing and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matcers. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial repo11ing 
and compliance and the results of that testing. and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral pm1 of an audit performed in accordance with Govnnment 
Audi1i11g S1andards. and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 

Other Matler.'i 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements taken as a 
whole. The accompanying Note 16 of the Organization's calculations of their Title IV 90/10 test is required by the 
U.S. Department of Education and the accompanying Note I 0 on related party transactions is required by the U.S. 
Department of Education and accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. In 
addition, the detail of consolidated statement of financial position on page 18 and the detail of consolidated 
statement of activities on page 20 are presented for purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of the 
consolidated financial statements. The information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly lo the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. 
The information has been subjected lo the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used lo prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated 
financial statements themselves and other additional procedures, in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Bountiful, Utah 
June 6, 2014 
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Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 

ASSETS 

Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash 

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position 
Derember 31, 2013 and 2012 

Sm<lcnt receivables, current, net of allowance 
for doubtful accounts of $5,953,888 and $6,066,795 

Promises to give, current portion 

Total current assets 

Hxed assets, al cost, less accumulated depreciation of 
$10.491.574 and $9.435.136 

Student receivables, nom:urrent, net of allowance 
for doubtful accounts of $22, 189,505 and $20.558.457 

Promises lo give, net of current portion 
Goodwill 
Deposits 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Current liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Grants payable. current portion 
Accrued liabilities 
Excess student funds 
DefcITed tuition 
Current portion of long-tenn debt 

Total current liabilities 

Grants payable. net of current portion 
Deferred rent 
Long-tenn debt, net of current portion 

Total liabilities 

Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

12/31/2013 

s 8.255.514 
369.987 

43,945,162 
108.000 

52,678,663 

9,332,524 

50,155,920 
208,128 

419,042,664 
1,464,325 

s 532.882.224 

s 6,834,814 
100,000 

4,529,961 
1,306,140 

28,510,505 
20,000,000 

61.281.420 

692,711 
3,109,290 

403,000,000 

468,083,421 

64,482,675 
316,128 

64.798,803 

s 532,882,224 

Sec accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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12/31/2012 

$ 6,281,927 
620,33 I 

35,991,175 
I 08,000 

43,001,433 

6,054,414 

43,084,934 
306,338 

419,042,664 
1,067,099 

s 5 I 2,556,882 

s 5,991,615 
100,000 
%6,970 

1,952,584 
37,982,485 
32,000,000 

78,993,654 

283,646 
2,971,040 

399,000,000 

481,248,340 

30,894,204 
414,338 

31,308,542 

s 512,556,882 



Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Consolidated Statement of Adivities 

For The Year Ended De('.ember 31, 2013 

Unrestricted 

REVE:\t.:ES A:\D OTHER SUPPORT 
Tuition and fees $ 186.128.271 
Contributions and gr:mts 2.014.098 
Other income 258.689 
Interest income 37.442 
Net assets released from restrictions 98,210 

Total revenues and other support 188,536, 710 

EXPENSES 
Admissions and marketing 65,189,923 
Instruction al 34,620,237 
Administrative 25,088,042 
Occupancy 10,928,712 
Student expenses 9,014.092 
Depreciation 5,052.929 
Grants 759,065 
Interest 4,295,239 

Total expenses 154,948.239 

Change in net assets :n,588,471 

Net assets, beginning of year 30,894,204 

Net assets. end of year $ 64.482,675 

Temporarily 
Restricted 

$ -

(98,210) 

(98,210) 

(98,210) 

414,338 

$ 316.128 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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Total 

$ 186.128.271 
2.014.098 

258.689 
37.442 

188.438,500 

65.189,923 
34,620,237 
25,088,042 
10,928,712 
9,014.092 
5,052.929 

759,065 
4,295,239 

154,948.239 

:n,490,261 

31,308,542 

$ 64,798,803 



Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Consolidated Statement of Adivities 

For The Year Ended De('.ember 31, 2012 

Unrestricted 

REVE:\t.:ES A:\D OTHER SUPPORT 
Tuition and fees $ 183.668,476 
Contributions and gr:mts 10,448,458 
Other income 206.368 
Interest income 7 l.193 
Net assets released from restrictions 107,023 

Total revenues and other support 194,501,518 

EXPENSES 
Admissions and marketing 64,032.460 
Instruction al 36,344,017 
Administrative 20.415,777 
Occupancy 10,174,617 
Student expenses 8,997,746 
Depreciation 4,627,597 
Grants 841.953 
Interest 245,680 

Total expenses 145,679,847 

Change in net assets 48,821,671 

Net assets, beginning of year 41,883,453 

Former stockholder distributions prior to merger (59,81o.920) 

Net assets, end of year $ 30,894,204 

Temporarily 
Restricted 

$ -

(107,023) 

()07,023) 

(107,023) 

521,361 

$ 414,338 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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Total 

$ 183.668,476 
10,448,458 

206.368 
7 l.193 

194,394,495 

64,032,460 
36,344,017 
20,415,777 
10,174,617 
8,997,746 
4,627,597 

841.953 
245,680 

145,679,847 

48,714,648 

42,404,814 

(59,81o.920) 

$ 31,308,542 



Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

For The Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 

12/3112013 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERA TI~G ACTIVITIES 

Change in net assets $ 33,490,261 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 5,052,929 
Bad debt expense 25,691,492 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Student receivables (40,716,466) 
Promises to give 98,210 
Deposits (397,226) 
Accounts payable 843, 199 
Grants payable 409,065 
Accrued liabilities 3,562,992 
Excess student funds (646,444) 
Deferred tuition (9,471,980) 
Deterred rent 138,250 

Net cash provided by operating activities 18,054,282 

CASH FLOWS FROM !~VESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of fixed assets (8,331,039) 
Decrease in restricted cash 250,344 

Net cash used in investing activities (8,080,695) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Principal payments on long-term debt (8,000,000) 
Distributions to stockholder. prior to merger 

Net cash used in financing activities (8,000,000) 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 1,973,587 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 6,281,927 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 8,255,514 

SUPPl,EMENT AL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATIO~ 

Cash paid for interest $ 3,234,378 

Cash paid for income taxes $ -
s 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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12/3112012 

$ 48,714,648 

4,627,597 
23,601, 168 

(30' 870 ,306) 
105,997 

(396,596) 
(l,492,944) 

383,646 
(4,265,066) 

(55,822) 
I0,448,971 

203,157 

51,004,450 

(6,325,963) 
1,680,295 

(4,645,668) 

(59,810, 920) 

(59,810,920) 

( 13,452, 138) 

19,734,065 

$ 6,281,927 

$ 181,766 

$ -
s 



Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated .Financial Statements 

December 31, 2013 and 2012 

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS 

Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. (the "Organization") is a non-profit corporation established 
in December 2006 lo promote excellence in higher education by working with philanthropists and others 
interested in reforming American colleges and universities. Education rcfonn, for these puqmscs, is defined 
as increasing access, reducing costs, and improving the quality of higher education with the goal to make 
universities. schools, departments, and ultimately individual faculty members. accountable. for the. quality 
and effectiveness of their work. 

Effective December 31,. 2012, Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc .. executed merger agreements 
to merge Stevens-Henager College. Inc. ("SHC'). Collegct\me1ica Denver, Inc. ("CAD"). CollegeAmerica 
Arizona, Inc. (''CA/\"'), California College San Diego, Inc .. ("CCSD"), California College, Inc .. (''CCr'), and 
CollegeAmerica Services, Inc. ("CASI"') into Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc., with Center 
for Excellence. in Higher Education, Inc. as the surviving Organization. The. Organization is engaged in the 
following business activities. through its. divisions:. 

Stevens-Henager College operates. a postsecondary college with campuses located in Utah and Idaho .. 

CollegeAmerica Denver operates a postsecondary college with campuses located in Colorado and Wyoming. 

CollegeAmerica Arizona operates a postsecondary college with campuses located in Arizona and Idaho. 

California College San Diego operates a postsecondary college with campuses located in California. 

CollegeAmerica Services provides various services to the divisions. 

Stevens-Henager College, CollegeAmerica Denver. CollegeAmerica Arizona, and California College San 
Diego are accredited by the Accrediting Commission of Career Schools and Colleges ("ACCSC''). 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES 

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have hecn prepared on the accrual hasis. The 
Organization follows the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting 
Standards Codification (ASC) 958, Not~(or-Profit Entities. 

The significant accounting policies followed arc described below to enhance the usefulness of the financial 
statcmenl to the reader. 

Date of Managemem's Review 

Subsequem events were evaluated through June 6. 2014, which is the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued. From their review, management has determined that there were no significam 
recognizable or unrecognizable subsequent events that were not properly disclosed. 

Basis of Accounting and Principles of Consolidation 

These consolidated financial statements arc prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United Stales of America. The consolidated financial statements include the 
accounts of Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc., Stevens-Hcnagcr College, CollegeAmcrica 
Denver, CollcgcAmc1ica Arizona. California College San Diego, California College, and 
CollegcAmcrica Services. These divisions arc under common control and, therefore, arc presented on a 
consolidated basis .. All intercompany accounts. and transactions have. been eliminated. 

7. 



Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 

Use of Estimates 

Notes to Consolidated !financial Statements (continued) 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 

The process of preparing consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management lo make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities along with disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities al the date of the consolidated financial statements and reported amounts of revenue 
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual. results could differ from those estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the consolidated slatement of financial position. cash equivalents include money market 
accounts. 

Rcsuictcd Cash 

Short-term restricted cash primarily represents amounts held for students that were received from the CAL 
Grants and Direct Loan programs. Restricted cash excludes certain funds that may be required to be 
returned if a student who receives Title. IV program funds withdraws. These components arc a parl of 
cash, as they arc not legally restricted or otherwise segregated from other assets. Rcsuictcd cash is 
excluded from cash and cash equivalents in the. consolidated statement of financial position and is held in 
bank dcposil accounts. 

Student Receivables 

Student receivables consist of amouncs due for tuition from currently enrolled and former scudents. Studenc 
receivables are stated at the amount management expeccs co collect from outstanding balances. Studenc 
receivables with maturities greater than one year are presented at their net presem value and discounted at 
rates commensurate with the underlying student's borrowing rate. 

Fixed Assets. 

Fixed assets arc stated al cost net of accumulated depreciation. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs 
arc charged to expense as incurred,. whereas renewals and betterments that extend the lives of fixed assets 
arc capitalized. Depreciation of fixed assets other than leasehold improvements is computed using either 
straight-line or accclcratcd methods with lives ranging from eighteen months to five years .. Depreciation of 
leasehold improvements is computed using the straight-line method over the shorter of the life of the asset 
or the life of the lease. 

Goodwill 

Goodwill represems the excess of the purchase price paid over the fair value of the net assets acquired in 
connection with a business combination. The Organization reviews goodwill for possible impairment on an 
annual basis or when trigge1ing events occur in accordance with FASB ASC 350 Intangibles - Goodwill 
and Othn. Goodwill is tesced for impairment at the reporting unit level. The Organization utilizes a two­
part impairment test. First, the fair value of the reporting unit is compared to the carrying value (including 
goodwill). If the carrying value is greater than the fair value. the second step is performed. In the second 
step, the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill is compared to the carrying amount of goodwill. 
If the carrying value is greater. a loss is recognized. The goodwill impairment test considers the impact of 
currem conditions and the economic outlook for the Organization's industry, the general overall economic 
outlook including market data. governmemal and environmental factors, in establishing assumptions used 
to compute the fair value of the reporting unit. The Organization also takes into account the historical, 
current and future operating results and any other facts and data pertinent to valuing the reporting unit. 
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Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated !financial Statements (continued) 

December 31, 2013 and 2012 

Revenue Recognition 

The Organization's revenue consists of tuition revenue. and. contributions (see below). Tuition revenue. 
is recognized on a straight-line basis over the applicable period of instruction net of expected refunds. 
The Organization's students generally enroll in a program that encompasses a series of modules which are 
taken consecutively over the length of the program. 

If a student's attendance precedes the receipt of tuition payments, the Organization establishes a student 
receivable for tuition charges in the amount reasonably assured of collection. Tuition payments received 
reduce the balance of accounts receivable due from the student. 

If a student withdraws from a program prior to a specified refund date. a portion of such student's tuition is 
refunded. The Organization records a provision for expected refunds and reduces revenue for the amount 
that is expected to be subsequently refunded. 

Bad debt expense is offset against gross tuition and fees revenue. 

Advertising Costs 

Advertising costs arc charged to operations when incurred. Advertising costs for the years ended December 
31, 2013 and 2012 was S37,184,420 and $39,370,092, respectively. 

Concentrations of Credit Risks 

The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which at times. may exceed federally insured 
limits. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to 
any significant credit risk on cash. 

Con tri but ions 

Unconditional promises to give arc recognized as conl1ibutions when received al the net present value of 
the amounts expected to be collected. Contributions arc considered available for unrestricted use unless 
specifically restricted by the donor. Amounts received that arc restricted for future periods or by the donor 
for specific purposes arc reported as temporarily restricted or permanently restricted support that increases 
those net asset classes. 

When a donor-imposed lime restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished. lcmpornrily restricted 
net assets arc reclassified lo unrestricted net assets and reported in the statements of activities and changes 
in net assets as net assets released from rcslliclion. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions arc 
met in the same year the contribution is received arc reported as unrestricted. 

Promises lo give 

Promises to give are recorded at their estimated fair value. Amounts due. later than one year,. if any, are. 
recorded at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The Organization estimates the allowance 
based on analysis of specific donors, taking into consideration the age of past due pledges and an 
assessment of the donor's ability to pay. At December 31, 2013 and 2012, management of the 
Organization considers all promises to be collectible: therefore. no allowance has been recorded. 

Income taxes 

The Organization is exempt from federal income taxes under section 50 I ( c )(3) of the Internal Revenue 
Code and therefore has made no provision for federal income taxes in the accompanying financial 
statement. In addition, the Organization has been determined by the Internal Revenue Service not to be a 
"'private foundation" within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
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Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated !financial Statements (continued) 

December 31, 2013 and 2012 

The Organization's Forms 990, Rl'turn. of Organiz.ation Exempt from Jncmm~ Tax. for the years ending 
December 31. 2013, 2012, 2011, and 20 IO are subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three years 
after they were filed. Generally accepted accounting principles require tax effects from an uncertain tax 
position to be recognized in the financial statement only if the position is more likely than not to be 
sustained if the position were to be challenged by a taxing authority. The assessment of the tax position is 
based solely on the technical merits of the position, without regard to the likelihood that the tax position 
may be challenged. If an uncertain tax position meets the more-likely-than-not threshold, the largest 
amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50% likely to be recognized upon ultimate settlement with the 
taxing authority is recorded. The Organization's primary tax positions relate to its status as a not-for-profit 
entity exempt from income taxes and classification of activities related to its exempt purpose. Management 
has evaluated the tax positions reflected in the Organization's tax filings and does not believe that any 
material uncertain tax positions exist. 

Prior to the merger, SHC. CAD, CAA, CCSD, CASI, and CCI filed their tax returns as subchapter "S'' 
Corporations. Under those provisions, the companies generally do not pay income taxes on their taxable 
income. Instead, the stockholder is liahlc for individual income Laxes on the Companies' Laxahle income. 
Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included in the consolidated financial statements. 

The Companies' Forms l 120S, U.S. llu:o111e Tax Return for an S Corporation, for the years ending 
December 31. 2012, 2011, and 20 JO arc subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three years after 
they were filed. Generally accepted accounting principles require tax effects from an uncertain tax position 
to. be recognized in the financial scatement only if the position is more likely than not lo be sustained if the 
position were to be challenged by a taxing authority. The assessment or the lax position is based solely on 
the technical merits or the position, without regard lo the likelihood that the tax. position may be challenged. 
If an unce1tain tax position meets the more-likely-than-not threshold. the largest amount of tax benefit that 
is greater than 50% likely lo be. recognized upon. ultimate seltlcment with the. taxing authority is recorded. 
Management has evaluated che tax positions reflected in the Companies· tax filings and does not believe 
that any material unce11ain tax positions exist. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

The Organization has a number of financial instruments, none of which are held for trading purposes. The 
Organization estimates that the fair value of all financial instruments at December 31, 2013 and 2012 does 
not differ materially from the aggregate carrying values of its financial instruments recorded in the 
accompanying consolidated statements of financial position. 

3. PROMISES TO GIVE 

Promises Lo give as of December 31, 2011 and 2012, consist of the fol lowing: 
2013 

Amounts due in: 
Less than one. year $ 108,000 
One. to. five years 216,000 

324,000 
Less: discount. lo. net present value ( 1.89%) <7,872) 

$ 316,128 

2012 

s 108,000 
324.000 
432,000 
( 17,662) 

s 414,338 

Management reviews contributions and pledges receivable quarterly and writes-off the amount of 
individual pledges, if any. it determines to be uncollectible. A discount rate commensurate with the 
risks involved in holding pledges receivable due in future years was used in calculating the present 
value of future cash flows. There was no allowance for doubtful pledges as of December 31. 2013 and 
2012. 

IO 



Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated !financial Statements (continued) 

December 31, 2013 and 2012 

4. RECEIVABLE FACTORING 

In December 2013 .. the. Organization factored an accounts receivable portfolio with a book value of 
$1,464,399 to a credit. agency. Under the arrangement, the Organization transferred $1.464,399 of accounts 
receivable. to the credit. agency in exchange for cash proceeds of $1.400,000 .. The terms. of the. agreement 
allow the credit agency to require the Organization to repurchase. all uncollected receivables in the portfolio 
if 70% or more of the receivables are. not considered current on June 30 .. 2014. 

5. l'IXED ASSETS 

i:;ixed assets as of December 31. 2013 and 2012 consist of the following: 

Furniture and equipment 
Software 
Student computers 
Leasehold improvements 

Less: accumulated depreciation 

2013 
s 8,346,391 

2,893.503 
6,270,943 
2.313.261 

19,824,098 
(10.491.574) 

2012 
$ 7,942,944 

716,605 
4,672.761 
2.157.240 

15,489,550 
(9.435.136) 

$ 9.332.524 $ 6.054.414 

Depreciation expense forthe years ended December 31. 2013 and 2012 was $5.052,929 and $4,627,597. 

6. GRANTS PAYABLE 

Grants. payable as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 consist of the following: 

Amounts payable in less than one year 
Amounts payable in one to five years 

Less: discount lo net present value ( 1.899~') 

2013 
350,000 $ 
450.000 
800.000 

(7,289) 

2012 
100,000 
300,000 
400,000 
( 16.354) 

$ 792.711 s 383.646 

The Organization has two grants payable over multiple years. One of the grants payable is closely 
tied to the promise to give (sec Note 3). Management reviews grants payable quarterly and writes­
off the amount of grants payable, if any, it determines to be not payable in the future. A discount 
rate commensurate with the risks involved in the payment or grants due in future years was used in 
calculating the present value or future cash flows. There was no allowance for grants payable as of 
December 31, 2013 and 2012. 
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Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated !financial Statements (continued) 

December 31, 2013 and 2012 

7. LINE OF CREDIT 

At December 31, 2012, the Organization had a line of credit with a bank in the amount of $3.600,000 
which expired on August. 3 I, 2013. The. balance. on the line. of credit a'\ of December 31, 2012 wa'\ S-0-. 

8. LONG-TERM DEBT 

In connection with the merger, the Organization entered into two notes payable with the seller, a related 
party trust. The senior note matures December 3 L 2017 and the junior note matures December 31. 2019. 
Both notes bear interest at I% and require quarterly interest payments. Principal payments on the senior 
note are required based on a formula which takes into account cash flow and revenue of the Organization. 
No principal payments are due on the junior note until after the senior note is paid in full. The notes 
contain certain events which could result in an adjustment to the interest rate in the future and acceleration 
of principal payments. No triggering events have occurred as of December 31. 2013. Both notes arc 
secured by the assets of the Organization. 

The halancc of the senior note al December '.H, 2013 and 2012 was $192.000,000 and $200.000,000. 
respectively. The ha lance of the junior note al Deccmher 31, 2013 and 2012 was $231.000,000 and 
$231,000,000, respectively. 

The current p011ion of the notes payable has been calculated based upon management's expectation for 
payment of principal in accordance with the formula. Projected future minimum principal payments arc as 
follows: 

Year ended December 31. 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

Thereafter 

$ 20,000,000 
24,000,000 
28,000,000 

120,000,000 
32,000,000 

199.000,000 

$ 423,000,000 

Interest expense on the notes for the years ended Decemher 31. 2013 and 2012 was $4,295,239 and $-0-. 
respectively. 

9. TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED ~ET ASSETS 

Temporarily restricted net assets consist of a promise to give (Sec Note 3). The balance of temporarily 
restricted net assets as of December 31. 2013 and 2012 was $316,128 and $414.338, respectively. 
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Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated !financial Statements (continued) 

December 31, 2013 and 2012 

10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The. Organization derives a substantial portion of its revenue from Student Financial Aid (SFA) received by 
its students under the Title IV programs administered by the U.S. Department of Education pursuant to the 
Higher Education Act of 1965, as. amended (HEA). To continue to participate in the. SFA programs, the 
Organization must comply with the regulations promulgated under the. HEA. Those regulations require that 
all related parry transactions. be. disclosed, regardless of their materiality to the financial statements. 

A member of the board of directors owns and operates real estate leasing companies from which the 
Organization leases some campus facilities. The amounts paid to these companies for the years ended 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 were as follows: 

Company 1 
Company 2 
Company 3 

2013 
$ 3,859.487 $ 

851,564 
386.458 

2012 
3,451,292 

822,556 
369 737 

$ 5.097.509 $ 4.643.585 

A member of the board of directors made a cash comribution of $2.000.000 to the Organization during the 
year ended December 31, 2013 and a cash contribution of $10,075,000 to the Organization during the year 
ended December 31, 2012. The Organizmion also has two notes payable co a related party crust (sec Note 
8). 

A member of che board of directors owns a company which provided accounting services co che 
Organization. During the year ended December 31, 2013, the. amount paid to this company was $601,286 .. 

A member of the board of directors owns a company which provided consulting services to the 
Organization. During the year ended December 31, 2013, the amount paid to this. company was $5,000. 

In addition,. the corporations (which were previously owned by a member of the board of directors) merged 
into the Organization (see Note 1 and Note 12). The corporations contributed to the Organization some of 
their accounts receivable. The contribution was recorded net of the allowance for doubtful accounts. The 
net amount of the contribution was $46.185,367. Also, prior to the merger, the stockholder of the 
Companies (now a member of the board of directors) operated CollegeAmerica Services. Inc. (CASI), a 
related party which provided various administrative services to the Companies. During the year ended 
December 31, 2012, the Companies recorded expense of $28.909,790. for services performed and expen!>es 
paid by CASI. 

l l. ECON0\-11C DEPENDENCY 

The Organization (SHC, CAD, CJ\!\, and CCSD) receives significant revenue from Title IV sources. 
Continuing pmticipation in Title IV programs requires compliance with numerous federal regulations. 
Future noncompliance with these regulations or a change in the laws governing these programs could 
severely impact the operations of the Organization. Further, ineligibility to participate in Title IV programs 
would have a material adverse effect on the Organization's enrollment, revenue and results of operations. 

13 



Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated !financial Statements (continued) 

December 31, 2013 and 2012 

12. MERGER 

Effective December 31, 2012 .. Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. executed merger agreements. 
to merge Stevcns-Henagcr College, Inc., CollcgcAmcrica Denver, Inc., CollcgeAmerica Arizona, Inc ... 
California College San Diego, Inc .. California College, Inc., and CollcgcJ\mcrica Services, Inc. into Center 
for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc., with Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. as the 
surviving Organization. As part of the merger, all trade names, domain names, and other intellectual 
property formerly held by the divisions were acquired by the Organization. The acquisition was recorded 
at fair value and goodwill was recorded. Total consideration was $480,864,694 which includes liabilities 
assumed of $49,864,694. Through the transaction, the Organization recognized cash of (S3,725,228), 
restricted cash of $620.331, net accounts receivable of $32,890,742, deposits of $1,067.099, property and 
equipment of $6,054,414, and goodwill of $419,042,664. 

13. COMMITMENTS AND CO:'llTINGENCIES 

Operating lease agreemems 

The Organization leases its campus facilities under operating lease agreements. The operating lease 
agreements contain provisions which allow for rent increases on an annual basis. subject to limits. The 
Organization recognizes rent expense on a straight-line basis over the lease period. Rent expense for the 
years ended December 31. 2013 and 2012 was $10,913,104 and Sl0,169.996, respectively. Future 
minimum lease payments are as follows: 

Y car Ending December 31. 
2014. 
2015. 
2016 
2017 
2018 

Thereafter 

Letters of credit 

Amount 
$ 7,979.382 

7,976.718 
6,654,600 
5,883,206 
4,804,529 
5.033.790 

$ 38 .332.225 

The Organization has four letters. of credit outstanding at December 31, 2013. Three. letters of credit are. to 
the Division of Private. Occupational Schools, Colorado Department of Education on behalf of 
CollegeAmerica Denver. One letter of credit is in lieu of a security deposit to a landlord .. The amount 
outstanding under the letters of credit is. S2,68 l.394 at December 31, 2013. As of January 31, 2014, the 
three letters of credit were. reduced to $733, 105. The letters of credit are. guaranteed to the issuing bank by 
the chairman of the board of directors of the. Organization. All letters of credit will expire in 2014. 

The Organization has four letters of credit outstanding at December 31, 2012. Three letters of credit are to 
the Division of Private Occupational Schools, Colorado Department of Education on behalf of 
CollegeAmerica Denver. One letter of credit is in lieu of a security deposit to a landlord. The amount 
outstanding under the letters of credit is $2,731.394 at December 31, 2012. 

Legal proceedings 

From time to time, the Organization may be involved in various legal proceedings that arc incidental to its 
business. However, lo management's knowledge, there currently arc no material pending legal proceedings 
involving the Organization. 

14 



Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 

14. REGULATORY 

Notes to Consolidated !financial Statements (continued) 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 

The Organization is. subject to extensive. regulation by federal and state governmental agencies and 
accrediting bodies. In particular, the Higher Education Act and the regulations promulgated there under by 
the U.S. Department of Education subject the Organization to significam regulatory scrutiny on the basis of 
numerous. standards. that schools must satisfy in order to participate in the various federal student financial 
assistance programs under Title. IV of the Higher Education Act. 

To participate in Title IV programs, an institution must be authorized to offer its programs of instruction 
by the relevant agency of the state in which it is physically located, accredited by an accrediting agency 
recognized by the U.S. Department of Education and certified as eligible by the U.S. Department of 
Education. The U.S. Department of Education will certify an institution to participate in Title IV programs 
only after the institution has demonstrated compliance with the Higher Education Act and the U.S. 
Department of Education's extensive regulations regarding institutional eligibility. An institution must also 
demonstrate its compliance to the lJ .S. Department of Education on an ongoing has is. As of Decemher 31. 
2013. management hclieves the Organization is in compliance with the applicahle regulations in all material 
respects. 

The Higher Education Act requires accrediting agencies to review many aspects of an institution's 
operations in order to ensure that the education offered is of sufficiently high quality to achieve satisfactory 
outcomes and that the institution is complying with accrediting standards. Failure to demonstrate compliance 
with accrediting standards may result in the imposition of probation, the requirements to provide periodic 
rep011s. the loss of accreditation or other penalties if deficiencies arc not remediatcd. 

Student Default Rate 

For each federal fiscal year, the. U.S. Department. of Education calculates a rate of student defaults for each 
educational institution which is known as a "cohort default rate.". An institution may lose its. eligibility to 
participate in some. or all Title. IV programs if, for each of the three most recem federal fiscal years for 
which information is available, 25%. or more of its students who became subject to a repayment obligation 
in that federal fiscal year defaulted on such obligation by the end of the following federal fiscal year. In 
addition, an institution may lose its eligibility to participate in some or all Title IV programs if its cohort 
default rate exceeds 40%1 in the most recent federal fiscal year for which default rates have been 
calculated by the U.S. Department of Education. The divisions' cohort default rates for the 2011, 
20 I 0 and 2009 federal fi seal years were the following: 

Stevens Henager College 
CollcgeAmerica Denver 
CollegcAmcrica Arizona 
California College San Diego 

Financial Responsibility 

2011 
21.8 
19.8 
23.8 
18.3 

2010 2009 
18.4 15.0 
26.0 22.7 
19.9 24.5 
15.3 19.7 

The U.S. Department of Education calculates an institution's composite score for financial responsibility 
based on its (i) equity ratio, which measures the institution's capital resources, ability to bon-ow and 
financial viability; (ii) primary reserve ratio, which measures the institution's ability to suppo11 cull'ent 
operations from expendable resources: and (iii) net income ratio, which measures the institution's ability to 
operate at a profit. An institution that does not meet the U.S. Department of Education's minimum 
composite score. may demonstrate its financial responsibility by posting a letter of credit in favor of the 
U.S. Department of Education and possibly accepting other conditions on its participation in the Title IV 
programs. The composite score, using the non-profit ratios, for the Organization for the year ended 
December 31. 20 I J was -0.2 .. 
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Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated !financial Statements (continued) 

December 31, 2013 and 2012 

Because the Organization operates in a highly regulated industry, they, like other industry 
participants, may be su~ject from time to time to audits, investigations, claims of noncompliance or lawsuits by 
governmental. agencies or third parties, which allege statutory violations, regulatory infractions or common 
law causes of action. While there can be no assurance that regulatory agencies or third parties will not 
undertake investigations or make claims against the. Organization, or that such claims,. if made, will not 
have a material adverse. effect on the Organization· s business, results of operations or financial condition, 
management believes it has materially complied with all regulatory requirements. 

15. 1''UNCTIONAL EXPENSE ALLOCATION 

16. 

The Organization's expenses by function for the year ended December 31, 2013 were as follows: 

Program Services SuEport Services 
Morality of Management and 

Colleges Capitalism General Total 

Grants $ $ 759,065 s $ 759.065 
Salaries and wages 59,226.341 5,363,071 64,589,412 
Pension plans 99,161 17,514 116,675 
Employee benefits 3.320,344 303,275 3,623.619 
Payroll taxes. 5,026,164 565,934 5,592,098 
Fees. for services 2.434,773 2,564,537 4,999,310 
Advertising 37,184.420 37,184,420 
Office 2,352,973 203,495 2,556,468 
Technology 1,283,180 673,258 1,956,438 
Occupancy I0,617.048 296.056 I0,913,104 
Travel 982.587 402.791 1385,378 
Conferences 60.440 123.057 183,497 
Interest 4,295.239 4,295,239 
Depreciation 5,052,929 5,052,929 
Insurance 364.674 364,674 
Accreditation 605,891 15,991 621,882 
Administrative 251,865 282,771 534,636 
Studenl support 10,219,395 10,219,395 

Total s 138,717,511 $ 759.065 $ 15,471,663 $ 154,948,239 

ATTEST A TIO~ OF REVE~UE SOURCES 

Regulations restrict the proportion of cash receipts for tuition and fees from eligible programs lo not 
more than 90 percent from Title IV programs. The failure of the Companies to meet the 90 percent 
limitation could resull in the loss of the Companies· ability lo participate in Title IV programs. For 
the year ended December 31, 2013, the Companies received the following (in thousands): 

Stevens- College College California 
Henager America America College 
College Denver Arizona San Diego 

Revenue from Title IV sources s 93,912. $ 17,995 $ 12,270 s 14,344. 
Total cash basis revenue. s 104,711. $ 21.250 $ 13,772 s 21,248. 
Percentage of revenue. from Title. IV 89.69% 84.68% 89.09%. 67.51 % 
Percentage of revenue from Non· Title IV 10.31% 15.32% I0.91% 32.49%. 
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Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Noles to Consolidated }"inam:ial Statements (continued) 

ne.-emher 31, 201.l 

In accordance wilh 34 C.F.R. 668.23, furlher analysis of Title IV revenues an<l lotal cash basis revenue for 2013: 

Adju~tcd ~tudcnt l'itle l V rc\'cnue 
Sulhidiz~d lo:m 

Unsubsidized. hm 

Federnl pell gr:ml 

FSEOG ISuhje•t. m mat•hing r~duction) 

Federnl work study. appli~d Ill. tuition :md 

fres. 1Su~j~c110. m:11ching redu•tion) 

Smdent. Tick IV r~venu~ 

Revenue adju~tmeut 
U: th~. amount of Funds Applied. First 

plus Smdent. Tick IV R~venu~. is. more than 

tuition. and fees .. th~n r~duc~. Tick IV r~venu~ 

hy. th~. amount over tuition. and fees 

Adjust~d Smdent. Tick IV r~venu~ 

Student '.'ion l'itlc IV •~venue 
Gr:mt funds for. th~. stud~nt from nonfcder:\I 

public agendes. or private sourc~s indepcnd~nt 

of th~. institution 

Funds. provided. for the smdent. und~r. a comracm:\I 

arrangemem. with :\ F~daal.. St:11e. or. Local 

govcrnmi.::nt agcn~y for. thi.::. purposi.:: 
of providing job. training to. low-income individuals 

Funds. used. by :\ stud~nt from savings. plans for 

~duc:11ional ~xp~nses. established. by or. on. b~half 

of th~. stud~nt that qu:\lify. for sp~dal tax tr~atment 

under the lnt~rnal R~venu~. Code 

School scholarships. disbursed. m the smdem 

Amoullls of unsubsidized. Lo:m over the 

pre-EC ASLA. loan. limits 

Student. paym~ms 

Studem Non Titk IV r~venu~ 

Revenue from othe,. source> !T•>l:\ls for the fo,·al ye:\!) 

Activities cnnducted by the sdl•>lll lhal :\!e 
ncl'CS:,ary fo .. cdul·ation ~md tr~lining 
134 C.F.R. S66!\.2!\iai!3JiiiJ 

Funds paid by a >ludent. m on behalf of a studem 

by a pany nther than a >•hooL for an ~duc:nion 

m tr:lining in a qualified prngr:\lll thm is nm eligible 

134 C.F.R. S66!\.2!\iai!3Jiiiii 
The Net Prescm Yalu~ iNPVI of ,.·ho•>l hm> 

disbur>ed l<l >lud~nts (.14 C.F.R. S<>68.281aJ(511iJ and lhJ 

R~\'CJUl~ from other soun.:~;, 

Stcv..:ns H'-·n;1~..:r Coll..:gc 

A11HH•n• 

s ...... 28.104.95 l 
39.495.495 
25.756.226 

555.474 

Adjusted Amount 

$ 2!\.l04.9Sl 
........ }9.495.495 
........ .25. 756.226 
............. 555.474 

......... 93.912.146 

$ 93.912.146 

s 

Ctlll..:t;c/\11•..:rica (kr1v..:r 

A11HH•n• 

Adjusted Amount 

....... .5.5:;7.926 $ 5.537.926 
6.9.~0.7!16 .......... .6.930.786 
5.326.5 lS ........... n26.515 

200.22:; ............. 200.223 

......... 17.9')5.450 

$ 17.995.450 

s 

$ .............. 25!17 $ 2.587 $ .............. .6.4% $ 

3.95').6!\7 .......... .3.959.687 2.0()4 957 2 ()()4.957 

(5.(J05) ................ 15.6051 (!\.04:;) ................ 18.0431 
6.!143.059 <J.84:;.ow l.2S l.880 l.25 l.880 

10.7~19.728 .1.255.290 

s . $ - s . $ - s 

17 

Cttll..:t;c/\11•..:rica /\ri7.tn1a 

A11HH•n• 

Adjusted Amount 

Califurni<t Cull~gc San J)i~gu 

A11HH•n• 

Adjusted Amount 

....... }.670.(J4l $ 3.670.641 S ....... .4.177.892 $ 4.177.!192 
4.556.8!\8 
:;_995.406 

47.790 

.......... 4.556.!\8!\ 

.......... .3.99SA06 

............... 47.790 

......... l 2.270. 725 

$ 12.270.725 

4()455 I ............. .404.55 l 

( l.845) ................ 11.11451 
l.095.404 UN5.404 

l.502.001 

. $ - s 

5.l l l.242 .......... .5.111.242 
4.917.170 .......... 4.917.170 

1:;7.749 .............. 137.749 

......... 14.:;44.053 

$ 14.344.053 

38.525 

5.729.108 .......... .5.729.10!\ 

1')')5) ................... (9951 
l. l.17.575 

(J.904.21.1 

. $ 
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Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Detail of (;n11$olidah•d Statem<:nl nf Financial Pn$ilion 

Dec<:mb..r .II. 2013 

Steven~ CollcgcAmcrka CollcgcAmcrka California 

H<•n:1ger College Denver Arizona College San Diego CASl/CEHE Elimination~ Totals 

ASSF.TS 

Curn:u• asscls 

Cash :uul cash ..:tluival..:nls $ (41.7:\9) $ H.143 $ !3.n79l $ (7.111~) s H.299.H.'>1 s s H.255.514 
R..:,lric.:h:ti cash ~77.192 IH.IM 33.5HI 41Jl4n 3n9.9R7 
Stuck·nt n..·cch·;1hl..:,, c11rn:11I, nd of allo"-'<mcc 

ftu cltHJhlful <t<.:CtHJnls 30.7n3.0~2 4.720.5~5 2.no4.n~3 5.R5n.99~ 43.945.ln~ 

:\c.:ctHmls n..·cch·;1hl..:. in1'..·rctn11p<111y 2.150.R57 l.453.H4n 5.0HO.ln5 (H.nH4.HnH1 
Promise~ to gi\'c . .:urn.~nt pt>rtion 108.000 108.000 

Tota] <.·urrcm as~ct~ .10.1198.425 4.746.iD6 4.785.:;!\2 V44.R7'.! l.1.4!\8.016 iR.6R4.R6RI 52.6 78.6(J3 

Fhccl ass..:cs. <H t:osl, nd of act:umulacccl tl..:pn:cialiun 4.50 l.3:13 43:\.nJO J0:\.9JI 7~5.314 3.35R.31n 9.332.524 
S1mh:11I n:cdvahlcs, m>r1c1nT..:nl, nd of allowance 

for tiouhtfo I acc:mmt' 31.~33.373 R.045.2H3 1.H44.4~0 9.032.H44 50.155.920 
Pron ii'..:' lo giv..:. nd or c11rn:111 porlion 20R.12H 20R.12H 
Gtt(>tiwill 431.000.000 (I l.957.33n1 419.042.M4 
Dcpo~i•~ 27~1.5.12 91.736 7!\.691 122.900 8~)J.466 l.464.325 

Tota] as~ct~ $ 67.012.663 $ 13 . .122.485 $ 7.017.424 $ 17.225.'130 s 448. 945. '126 s <20.642.204) s 532.882.224 

1.JAIUUTIF.S AND NF.T ASSF.TS 
C11rn:r1• liahilici..:s 

:\c:crnmls p<t}'ahl..: $ $ $ $ s n.R34.H 14 s s n.R34.H 14 
:\c.:ctHmls pay;1hl..:, i111'..·rctn11pauy R.41 :\.non ~n 1.774 4.4RH (H.nH4.HnH1 s 
Granls payahl..:, c.:urrcnt portion HIOJIOO HIOJIOO 
:\c.:cru..:tf liahiliti..:' 2.159.510 443.059 ~2n.44R 290.Hn~ 1.404.llX~ 45~9.901 

F.xL'CS\ stuclcut fomfs Hn5.l I.\ 73.247 70.'lllX 290.HI~ l .. \On.140 
D..:forn:tf 11ii1iou I X.595.24.\ .l.nn9.4~x 2.301.MO 3.944.194 2H510.505 
Currcm pnninn nf limg-term Licht 20.000.000 20.000.000 

Total nirrem liahilities .10.038.472 4.447.508 2.5911.056 4.5.17.868 28.343 . .184 (8.684.868) 61.281.420 

Granes payahlc. nd of t:urcnc portion n92.71 I n92.71 I 
Dcfrrrcd rent 1.961.664 30!\.761 .141.44:; 4RO.R5R 16.5(,4 .1.109.290 
I .on~ term th:hl. nd of c.:urrcnc porcion 403.0IJO.IJOIJ 40J.OIJO.IJOIJ 

To1:1l li:ihilitics :12.IJOIJ.IJn 4.75n.2n9 2.l)41J.4l)9 5.0 lR.72n 43~.052.nW 1H.nH4.:\n:\1 4n:\.o:\3.42 t 

:-lc1:1swt~ 

UnrcMri.:tcd 35.012.527 8.5(J6.216 4.076.925 12.207.204 l(,_577_ 1:;9 Cl l.957 .. 1:;(,\ M.4!\2.675 
Temporarily r..:,lric.:h:tl 3tn.t2:\ 3tn.t2:\ 

Tocal u..:c ass..:cs :•5.01:?.S?.7 R5nn.2tn 4.o7n.9:?5 I 2.207.:?Jl4 ln.Rl)3.2n7 (I l.957.:13n1 M.7l)R.:\o:; 

Tocal liahililics :nul nd asscls $ n7.012.nn3 $ l3J22.4:\.S $ 7.1117.424 $ 17.225.l)31J s 44:\. 945. l)2n s (20.M2.204/ s 53~.RH2.224 

S..:c imlcpcml..:ul ;mcli1or's rcpurl ;mcl act:omp:m}'int; nolcs cu cunsolitl<Hccl fin:uu.:ial sl;Hcmt.·nc. 
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Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Dctail of Consolidated Stakrncnl of Financial Position 

Dcccrnbcr .,I. 21112 

St.:v.,ns California 

Hcnagc1· Colkg.cAmcrica CollcgcAmcri~a College San 

Coll.,ge Denver Arizona Diego CASl/CEHE Eliminations Totals 

ASSETS 
Current a~scts 

Ca~h and cash ~qui vaknts s (! 11.689) $ (5.29()) $ (8.007i $ !36.823} $ 6.443.736 s - s 6.281.927 
Rc~tl'krc<i cash 491.846 41.647 47.878 38.960 620 . .1.11 
Stllllcnr rc.:civablc,. curl'cnt. nc1 of alll1w;1111:c 

fol' clnnh1ful accounts ....... 23. 7 I !l.605 ......... 4.9%.WX I. 979.(12(1 5.304.336 ~5.991. I 75 
Promises to give. l'UIT.,nl portion I08.000 I08.000 

Total curl'ent assc:ts 24.090.762 .'UJ:~2.96.'i 2.019.497 .'i • .'.\06.47.'.\ 6.551.736 43.001.433 

Fixell assets. al cosl .l.048.997 516.155 302.971 720.433 1.465.858 6.054.414 
Sm<icnt 1·c.:civablc~. noncuncm. ncl of alhnvancc 

for tll1uh1ful account~ 25.J 18.840 7.981.09.1 1.608.150 8.376.851 4.1.084.9.14 
P .. rnni~c., tn give. ner of current plut ion ....................... 30(1338 ~06.~~K 

Coodwill 431.000.000 (ll.'J57.H6l 41 '!.042.664 
Deposits 297.797 80.119 84.301 127.690 477.192 1.067.099 

Total ass~ts $ .'i2 . .'i56J'l6 $ H.610.:n2 $ 4.014.919 $ 14..'i.'.\ I .447 $ 439.801.124 s ( 11.1)57.336) s 5 I 2.556.KK2 

LIAIHLl'l'IES ANI> NET ASSETS 
Ctmem liahi Ii ries 

Accounts payable s 2.X:n.:WK $ .'i'JX.164 $ ~~65')5 $ 670.809 $ 1.548.649 s - s 5.•)•) 1.615 

Grants payable. current pnnion 100.000 \00.000 
Aeerued liahililies 674.695 89.247 62.275 64.761 75.992 %0.970 
Exce's student fumb 1.J.l.l.244 150.773 127.198 541.369 1.952.584 
Dcfe1T~d luilio11 25.087.760 5.277.655 2.669.931 4.947.139 37.982.485 
Cuffent pnnion. of lnng-tenn debt ....................... ....................... 3 2.000.000 32.000.000 

Total curl'cnt liahilitic., 29.733.097 6.JJ5.8W 3.195.999 6.224.078 33.724.641 78.993.654 

Crants payable:. nc:t of curelll porrion 283.646 2K3.646 
Dcfrrrcd rent 2.167.110 209390 301. I 78 276.798 16.564 2.971.040 
I .ong -Tenn cleh1. ne1. of ~u..renr portion ....................... ....................... 399 .000.000 399.000.000 

Total liabililic~ JJ.900.207 6 . .125.229 3.497.177 6.500.876 433.024.851 4!!1.24!U40 

N~t ttssets 

L:nrestricled 20.656.IR9 7.285.103 517.742 8.0.l0.571 L'U61.935 I 11.957.336) 30.894.204 
Tcmpornl'ily 1·csrrictcd 414.338 414.338 

Total net a'scl' 20.656.189 7.285. 10.l 517.742 8.030.571 6.776.273 (I l.957.'.H6J '.H.308.542 

Total liabili1i~s and nc:t assers s .'i2 . .'i.'i6J'l6 $ H.610.:n2 $ 4.014.'JJ') $ 14..'i.'.\ I .447 $ 439.801.124 s ( 11.1)57.336) s 5 I 2.556.KK2 

See inclependelll auditor's report an1t accnmpanying norc.'\ tn cnnsoliclatecl financial .<taiemems. 
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REVENUES 
Tuition nnd fees 
Contributions and grants 
Other income 
Interest income 

Total revenues 

EDUCATIONAL EXPENSES 
Admissions and marketing 
lnstructionnl 
Administrative 
Administrative, intercompany 
Occupancy 
Student expenses 
Depreciation 
Grants 
Interest 

Total expenses 

Change in net assets 

Net assets, beginning of year 

Net assets. end of year 

Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Detail of Consolidated Statement of Activities 

For. The Year Ended December 31, 2013 

Stevens California 

Hen ager Collegei\merica Collegei\merica College San 

College Denver Arizona Diego CASI/CE HE 

$ 122.641,678 $ 24.293.670 $ 15.762,407 $ 23,430.517 $ 26.095.718 
2,100 l.200 1,008 2.009.790 

85,409 48.166 13.081 40.115 71,918 
2,926 5,539 4 26,509 2,464 

122.732.113 24.347.375 15.776.692 23,498.149 28.179.890 

46.942.516 6.741,529 4.254,471 6,469.380 782.027 
20.350.686 6.067.747 2,502.294 5. 125. 177 574.333 

8,518,509 3.380.013 1.066.131 1.277.245 10.846.144 
16.948.986 3.393.504 2.264.604 3.488.625 
6.030.070 1.715.401 I .278.458 1.608.728 296.055 
6.005.845 1.319.928 584.697 971.673 131.949 
3.579.163 448.140 266.854 380.688 378.084 

759.065 
4,295,239 

108,375, 775 23,066,262 12,217,509 19,321,516 18,062,896 

14.356.338 t,28U 13 3.559.183 4.176.633 10.116.994 

20,656, 189 7,285, 103 517,742 8,030,571 6,776,273 

$ 35.012.527 $ 8.566.216 $ 4.076.925 $ 12.207.204 $ 16.893.267 

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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Eliminations Totals 

$ (26.095. 719) $ 186.128.271 
2.014.098 

258.689 
37,442 

(26.095.719) 188,438.500 

65.189.923 
34.620.237 
25.088.042 

(26.095.719) 
10.928.712 
9.014.092 
5.052.929 

759.065 
4,295,239 

(26,095, 719) 154, 948,239 

33,490.261 

(11,957,336) 31,308,542 

$ (11,957.336) $ 64.798.803 



Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Detail of Consolidated Statement of Activities 

For The Year Ended December 31, 2012 

California 

Stevens Henager CollegeAmeriea CollegeAmeriea College San 

College Denver Arizona Diego CASl/CEHE Eliminations 

REVENUES 
Tuition and fees $ 112,538.438 $ 29,190,732 $ 16,427,264 $ 25,512,042 s 28,909.790 $ (28.909,790) 
Contributions and gm 10,448,458 
Other income 109.052 39,785 13,174 44,357 
Interest income . 17,720 13.925 . 3.129 . 36,419 

Total revenues 112,665,210 29,244,442 16,443,567 25,592,818 39,358.248 (28.909,790) 

EDUCATIONAL EXPE~SES 
Admissions and mark 
Instructional 
Administrative 
Occupancy 
Student expenses 
Depreciation 
Grants 
Interest 

Total expenses 

Change in net assets 

Net assets, beginning of: 

Stockholder distribution~ 

Net assets, end of year $ 

39,950.643 10,559,411 5,539,466 7.929,855 53,085 
21,306.024 7,140,725 2,404,143 5,473,136 19.989 
27,770.641 6,657,130 3,753,595 5,714,086 5,430.115 (28,909,790) 
5,796.248 1,696,101 1,144,395 l,517,294 20,579 
6,228.459 1,601,637 506,103 635,266 26,281 
3,239.094 602,306 318,380 335,236 132,581 

841.953 
15.952 5 . 229,723 

104,291,109 28,273,262 13,666,082 21,604,878 6,754.306 (28.909,790) 

8,374.101 971,180 2,777,485 3.987,940 32,603,942 

25,365.000 7,703,000 2,680,000 10.147,000 8,467,150 (11,957.336) 

. ( 13,082,912) ( 1,389.077) . (4,939.743) (6, 104,369) (34.294,819) 

20.656,189 $ 7,285,103 $ 517,742 $ 8,030,571 s 6,776.273 $ (l l.957,336) 

See independent auditor's repo11 and accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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Totals 

$ 183,668,476 
10.448,458 

206,368 
. 71,193 

194,394,495 

64.032,460 
36,344,017 
20,415,777 
10,174,617 
8,997,746 
4.627,597 

841,953 
245,680 

145,679,847 

48.714,648 

42.404,814 

. (59,810,920) 

$ 31,308,542 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT O~ INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING A~D ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON 

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDA~CE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

The Board of Directors. 
Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Salt Lake City, UT 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gm1ern111mt Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. the consolidated financial statements of Center for Excellence in Higher Education, 
Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 
2013, and the related consolidated statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related 
notes to the consolidated financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 6, 2014. 

Internal Control Over financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered Center for Excellence 
in Higher Education, Inc.' s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that arc appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements, hut not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Center for Excellence 
in Higher Education, lnc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Organization's internal control. 

A de.fl<:iency i11 internal colltro/ exists when the design or operation of a control docs not allow management or 
employees. in the. normal course of performing their assigned functions, lo prevent, or detect and coffect. 
misstatements on a timely basis. /\ material weakness is a deficiency. or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control. such that there is a reasonable possibility that a mnlerinl misstatemem of the enlity"s consolidated financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A siw1{firnnt deficiency is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yec impo11ant 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of incernal control was for che limited purpose described in the firs! paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist chat have nor been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Center for Excellence in Higher Education. lnc.'s 
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts. and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly. we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under (;m·emment 1\uditi11~ Standards. 

1564 South 500 West, Ste. 201 
Bountiful, UT 84010-7400 
Phone:. (801).294-3155 
Fax: (801) 294-3190 
www.shaw-cpa.com 
info@shaw-cpa.com 
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Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this rep011 is solely to describe the scope or our testing or imcrnal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Govern111ent Auditing Standards 
in. considering. the organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable 
for any orher purpose .. 

Bounciful, Utah 
June. 6,. 2014 
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Center for Excellence in Higher Education, Inc. 
Schedule. of findings and Disposition of Prior Year Findings 

Year Ended December 31, 2013 

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results 

Con.m/idated f"inancial Swremenfs 

Type of audiLor's rcporl issued: Unqualified 

Internal control over financial repmting: 
• Material weakness(es) identified?. 
• Significant deficiency(ies) identified that arc 

not considered to be material weaknesses'! 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings 

Yes _j_No 

Yes _j_None reported 

__ Yes _j_No 

No findings related to the consolidated financial statements were noted which arc required to be rcporccd in 
accordance. with G011ern111mt Auditing Standards for the year ended December 31, 2013. 

Disposition of' Prior Year Findings 

No findings related to the combined financial statements were noted which are required to be reported in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards for the year ended December 31, 2012. 
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